ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 8, 2002
1:05 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg, Chair
Representative Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Al bert Kookesh

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 332

"An Act extending the termnation date of +the Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 15
Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to inflation- proofing the permanent fund.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 243
"An Act relating to sexual assault or abuse of a mnor."

- MOVED CSHB 243(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 183
"An Act relating to public interest litigants and to attorney
fees; and anending Rule 82, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure.”
- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 321

"An Act relating to the purpose for crine victins' conpensation;
and limting the factors that may be considered in making a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 8, 2002



crime victins' conpensation award in cases of sexual assault or
sexual abuse of a mnor."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 332

SHORT TI TLE: EXTENDI NG COUNCI L ON DOMESTI C VI OLENCE
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) BUNDE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 16/ 02 1981 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 02 1981 (H JUD, FIN

01/ 16/ 02 1981 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

02/ 08/ 02 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HIR 15

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM PERMANENT FUND
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 14/ 01 0316 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 14/ 01 0316 (H JUD, FIN

02/ 14/ 01 0316 (H REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY

10/ 19/ 01 (H JUD AT 11: 00 AM Anch LI O Conf
Rm

10/ 19/ 01 (H Heard & Held

10/ 19/ 01 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 04/ 02 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 04/ 02 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 08/ 02 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 243

SHORT TI TLE: VERI FY AGE REQD FOR DEFENSE | N SEX CRI MES
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) DYSON

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 10/ 01 0930 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 10/ 01 0930 (H JUD

04/ 25/ 01 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 25/ 01 (H Heard & Held

04/ 25/ 01 (H M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 23/ 02 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 8, 2002



01/ 23/ 02 (H Heard & Hel d/ Subcomm ttee
assi gned
M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 08/ 02 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CON BUNDE

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 501

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 332.

SUSAN SCUDDER, Executive Director

Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA)
Department of Public Safety (DPS)

PO Box 111200

Juneau, Al aska 99811-1200

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 332, spoke in
support of extending the sunset date and responded to questi ons.

DEL SM TH, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

PO Box 111200

Juneau, Al aska 99811-1200

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 332, spoke in
support of extending the sunset date and responded to questions.

JAMES VELCH, Chief of Police

City of Fairbanks

911 Cushnman Street

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 332.

BRENDA STANFI LL, Executive Director

Interior Alaska Center for Non-Violent Living (IAC
717 9th Avenue

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 332.

W NI FRED KELLY

Tundra Wnen's Coalition (TWO)

PO Box 2785

Bet hel , Al aska 99559

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 332.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 8, 2002



ARLEATA SNELL

PO Box 3121

Bet hel , Al aska 99559

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

BURT COITLE, Mayor

Cty of Valdez

PO Box 307

Val dez, Al aska 99686

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

CATHERI NE VAARA, Executive Director
Advocates for Victins of Violence (AW)
PO Box 524

Val dez, Al aska 99686

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

GRACE BROOKS, Executive Director

Sit kans Agai nst Fami |y Viol ence (SAFV)

PO Box 6136

Sitka, Alaska 99835

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

DEB KNAFF

Sit kans Agai nst Fami |y Viol ence (SAFV)
PO Box 6136

Sitka, Alaska 99835

of

of

of

of

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support
that she would be faxing a letter from Louise

the comm ttee.

DAVWN COYKENDALL
407 Vestovia Street
Sitka, Al aska 99835

HB

HB

HB

HB

of

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

G NGER BAIM Director

Saf e and Fear-Free Environnment (SAFE)
PO Box 94

D Ilingham Al aska 99576

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

JILL SI MPSON, Executive Director
Cordova Fam |y Resource Center (CFROC)
PO Box 863

Cordova, Al aska 99574

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4-

332.

332.

332.

332.

HB 332 and noted
How t zer (ph) to

332.

332.

332.

February 8, 2002



NANCY SCHEETZ- FREYM LLER, Public Menber

Council on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA)
420 Kayak Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99515

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 332.

BlILL MLLER, Deputy Chi ef

Donestic Viol ence Coordi nator

Anchor age Police Departnent (APD)

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

4501 Sout h Bragaw Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 332.

PATTI SWENSON, St aff

to Representative Con Bunde

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 501

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 332, responded to
guestions on behal f of the sponsor, Representative Con Bunde.

CLARK S. GRUENI NG, Memrber

Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation Board of Trustees

217 Second Street, Suite 204

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments on HIR 15 and responded
to questions.

ROBERT D. STORER, Executive Director

Al aska Per manent Fund Cor porati on (APFC)

PO Box 25500

Juneau, Al aska 99802-5500

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments on Version C of HIR 15
and responded to questi ons.

JI M KELLY, Director of Communications

Al aska Per manent Fund Corporation (APFC)

PO Box 25500

Juneau, Al aska 99802-5500

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during discussion of HIR
15 and responded to questions.

RONALD W LORENSEN, Attorney

Si mpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen & Longenbaugh
One Seal aska Pl aza, Suite 300

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 8, 2002



Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Speaki ng as counsel to the Al aska Permanent
Fund Corporation, provided comments and responded to questions
regardi ng HIR 15.

REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 104

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 243.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal Division

Department of Law (DQL)

PO Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 243 responded to
guesti ons.

HEATHER M NOBREGA, Staff

to Representative Nornman Rokeberg

House Judiciary Standing Conmttee

Al aska State Legislature

Capitol Building, Room 118

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 243 responded to
guesti ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-13, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAIR NORVAN ROKEBERG called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Represent ati ves
Rokeberg, Ogan, Coghill, Meyer, and Kookesh were present at the
call to order. Representative Janes arrived as the neeting was

i n progress.

HB 332 - EXTENDI NG COUNCI L ON DOMESTI C VI OLENCE

Nunmber 0050

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 332, "An Act extending the term nation date of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 8, 2002



the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assaul t; and
providing for an effective date."

Nunber 0071

REPRESENTATI VE CON BUNDE, Alaska State Legislature, sponsor,
explained that HB 332 would extend the Council on Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA) to June 30, 2006. He noted
that last [fiscal] year, the CDVSA provided services to over
7,000 Al askan wonen and children, giving them safe shelter
t hroughout the state for a total of over 50,000 "shelter
ni ghts." He nentioned that an audit conducted by the
Legislative Audit Division suggested the sunset extension.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if it is typical to extend sunsets
four years at a tine.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE said that in his experience, it is.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked whether all of the concerns raised by
the Legislative Audit Division's audit have been addressed by
t he CDVSA.

REPRESENTATI VE =~ KOOKESH, after noting that the sponsor's
st at enent makes ref erence to provi di ng services for
perpetrators, asked what those services entail.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE said that there is a "batterers' progrant
in which perpetrators are encouraged to change their behavior.

Nunber 0421

SUSAN SCUDDER, Executive Director, Council on Donmestic Violence
and Sexual Assault (CDVSA), Departnent of Public Safety (DPS),
said that the CDVSA strongly supports the extension of the
sunset date. It provides a critical service [pertaining to] the
public safety of Alaskans, particularly Al askan wonen and
children, and provides prevention services to perpetrators of
donestic viol ence. She noted that of the five recomendations
made as a result of the audit perforned on the CDVSA, one is the
extension of the sunset date.

CHAIR ROKEBERG referred to the Legislative Audit Dvision's

Recommendation No. 1, which said: "The |egislature should anmend
the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault's statutes
related to appointnment of council nenbers.” He asked M.

Scudder to speak to that issue.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 8, 2002



M5. SCUDDER explained that the ~current statute regarding
appoi ntment of council nenbers requires the Alaska Network on
Donmestic Violence & Sexual Assault (ANDVSA), which 1is a
nonprofit coalition of the prograns served by the CDVSA to
submt a list of recommended persons to the governor, and
requires the governor to appoint three persons to the council
after consultation with the ANDVSA However, the governor is
not required to choose the appointees from the ANDVSA's |ist;
rather, he/she must sinply consult with the ANDVSA She not ed
that it is fairly standard practice for the governor to consult
with the experts in any field when naking appointnents to boards
or conmm ssions. She said that the CDVSA does not feel that the
statutes need to be changed since the governor only consults
with the ANDVSA and does not have to follow its recommendati ons
regardi ng appointees; "in fact, precedent shows there have been
governors who have appoi nted people who were not reconmended by
the [ ANDVSA]. "

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN referred to the audit's statenent that an
apparent conflict of interest exists when a council nenber
reviews, evaluates, approves, and nonitors a grant to the sane
non-profit corporation that was responsible for recomending
that individual for council nenbership.

M5. SCUDDER sai d:

The way that this works is the [ANDVSA] puts out the
word to all the prograns that there is an opening, and
then the prograns thenselves have a specific protocol
that they use - an evaluation process - and they
recoomend people to the [ANDVSA], and then the
[ ANDVSA] will recomrend people to the governor. The
peopl e who are recomended by the individual prograns
may i ndeed have had an affiliation with any of those
prograns in the past. In fact, on our current
[council], one of our nore recent appointnents used to
be on the board of STAR [Standing Together Against
Rape] in Anchorage, and actually had to resign that
position in order to serve on the council. [ Because
we want to have people who are inforned on the issue],

that same perceived conflict of interest could
occur with many people who have served on the council:
that they will have had an affiliation with a donestic
vi ol ence or sexual assault program sonewhere in the
state at sonme point intinme....

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 8, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how the CDVSA interacts with groups
| i ke Star.

M5. SCUDDER explained that the CDVSA provides funding to those
prograns, nostly through federal grants, and then provides
oversight of the grants to ensure that the prograns are
fulfilling all the requirenents of the grants.

Nunber 0740

DEL SM TH, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), added that the CDVSA, of
which he is a nmenber, is intended to serve not only as a funding
body, but also as a center of information about related
subj ect s. He noted that the CDVSA does nmaintain ongoing
di scussions with the different prograns across the state.

CHAIR ROKEBERG referred to the Legislative Audit Dvision's
Recommendati on No. 3, which said: "The |egislature should anmend
AS 18.66.050 referring to the council hiring staff, and the
council should address personnel issues and pronote strong
| eadership by the executive director.”™ He asked M. Scudder to
conment .

M5. SCUDDER expl ained that current statute says that the counci
shall hire an executive director and staff, but in practice,
that is not what happens. The council hires the executive
director who then hires the staff; there have not been any cases
where the council has directly hired staff.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked why the CDVSA has not sought a statutory
change regardi ng that issue.

M5. SCUDDER replied that "it hasn't been posing a problem"”

MR SM TH added that although he has been a nenber of the

council for the past seven years and is aware of what the
statute says, "it never occurred to ne that | wanted to be
involved, or [that] any nenber of the council wanted to be

involved in the selection of staff for the executive director."
He said that it just seened |ike an unnecessary change because,
in practice, the council has interpreted the statute to mean
that the council hires the executive director who then hires
hi s/ her own staff.

CHAIR ROKEBERG remarked that this practice, in essence, is an
exanple of the adm nistration interpreting and following, as it

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 8, 2002



sees fit, the laws passed by the legislature. He noted,
however, that although the current practice is working, the
statute should be changed to reflect "reality."

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH agreed that the statute should be changed
to reflect the current practice. He added that since he puts a
lot of faith in the people he hires, if he hired an executive
director, for exanple, he'd expect that executive director to
hire the appropriate staff.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that the audit does reconmend a statutory
change to this effect, and that he prefers the admnistration to
foll ow what the statutes say.

REPRESENTATIVE JAMES said she agrees wth Representative
Kookesh; when hiring a leader, it is inportant for that | eader
to have enployees that he/she can work wth. She, too, opined
that the statute should be changed to reflect current practice.

Nunber 1016

CHAIR ROKEBERG referred to the Legislative Audit Dvision's
Recommendation No. 4, which said, "The council should address
statutory responsibilities that relate to consultation with the
Department of Health and Social Services (AS 18.66.050(12)) and
other entities and organizations (AS 18.66.050(14))." He asked
Ms. Scudder to comment.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL interjected to suggest t hat
Recommendation No. 4 and Recommendation No. 5, which said:
"Council menbers and the executive director should consult wth
the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent, school
district representatives, and grantees who have worked toward
curriculum devel opnent to create a conprehensive standardized
curriculum to be used within the schools across the state,”
could be rolled into a "conmunication discussion between
agenci es. "

CHAI R ROKEBERG offered M. Scudder the opportunity to address
bot h recommendati ons toget her.

MS5. SCUDDER said that Recommendation No. 4 asked that the
council work with the Departnent of Health & Social Services

( DHSS) on the training of heal thcare professionals in
identifying and treating cases of donestic violence and sexua
assaul t. She explained that the council has had a role in this

[training]; the DHSS has an ongoing program - The Al aska Fam |y

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 8, 2002



Vi ol ence Prevention Project - and at its inception as a ten-
state test program the CDVSA sat on the programis advisory
boar d. She said she is not sure "exactly what happened in the
audit on that," but the healthcare professionals in Alaska are
receiving training on these issues already. She added that the
CDVSA was at the table when this program was first set up, can
certainly take a nore active role in the ongoing process of the
program and will do that with the DHSS.

M5. SCUDDER nentioned that the second part of [Recomrendation
No. 4] pertains to nmandatory training for certain types of
enpl oyees - including enployees of the court, judges, and
private enployees - on issues of donestic violence. She
explained that the CDVSA has also had a role in that training
through one of the grants that it admnisters - the "Violence
Agai nst Wonen Act" grant - and one of the portions of that
training this year is to have judges receive training on
domestic violence issues. Thus, she assured the conmttee, sone
of this aspect of Recommendation No. 4 is already being
addressed, and the CDVSA will take a look at the training to
ensure that it is conprehensive and neets the needs [of
partici pants].

Nunmber 1153

M5. SCUDDER said that Reconmmendation No. 5 pertained to working
with the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED) to
develop a statewide curriculum on donmestic violence and sexual
assault issues. She explained that historically, the CDVSA has
left it to the individual prograns funded by the CDVSA to
[create] curriculuns that are tailored to their regions. She
reiterated that the activity recommended in the audit is
happeni ng; the prograns are in the schools, but the curricul um
has not been [created] by the CDVSA She noted that the CDVSA
wll, however, gather the nmaterials that are already being used
around the state, and will work with the EED to cone up with at
| east a base nodel that school districts can use if they want to
- but, once again, letting the individual prograns in the
[different] areas add information that is specific to those
areas to ensure that cultural and other local, relevant issues
are addressed.

CHAIR ROKEBERG asked whether curriculum requirenents are a
matter of federal |aw.

M5. SCUDDER said she did not know. In response to a question
pertaining to what is taught in the classroom regardi ng sexual

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 8, 2002



assaul t and donestic violence, she explained that t he
reconmendation of the CDVSA is to start age-appropriate
education in the school system part of the solution is breaking
a cycle, and part of breaking a cycle is education.

MR. SM TH added that what is intended of the curriculumin the
schools is to break the cycle of violence, to teach that
violence is not the answer to resolving problens; that is what
the curriculumis focused on, not necessarily on sex education.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMVES asked whet her any assertiveness
trai ning/ education is being offered.

M5. SCUDDER said yes; in the progranms throughout the state,
counseling services are offered to victins of donestic violence
and sexual assault, and part of those services include
enpoweri ng people so that they can becone stronger advocates for
t hensel ves.

Nunber 1387

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN nentioned that for years, he'd served on the
"public finance subconmttee,” noting that at the tinme, that
subconmittee felt that the batterers' issue was not receiving
enough enphasi s. He said he is disappointed to see, years
| ater, that the audit is pointing out the sanme weaknesses
regarding the batterers' program and he surm sed that perhaps
this issue is not a priority for the council.

M5. SCUDDER countered that the CDVSA funds seven conmunity-
based, nonprofit batterers' progranms, and three [batterers']

progranms in the prisons. So it is not that batterers' issues
aren't being addressed, she added; "it is fairly new to the
council - we've only been doing this for three years - but it is

sonet hing that we are addressing."”

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN opined that a lot of things done by the
CDVSA nerely address the problem after the fact. He also opined
that the batterers' programis the one preventative programthat
goes to the root of the problem He suggested that nore noney,
time, and resources should be spent on the people who are
perpetrating these crines, rather than on just trying to make
the victinms whol e.

MR SMTH confirmed that initially, the CDVSA was not spending

anything on the batterers' prograns; then the CDVSA was able to
spend $200, 000 and now it spends $360,000. He added his beli ef

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 8, 2002



that there is a recommendation/request for funds 1in the
governors budget this year as well. He explained that the
problem is that "you' ve got to spend out of both pockets for a
while." He continued:

| want to break the cycle of violence, as every nenber
does that's involved in this, and certainly batterers'
intervention and changing their behavior is an
appropriate approach. But | cannot |eave wonen on the
street who are not protected. So | need to spend
noney on shelters al so. I'"d spend every dinme you're
willing to give us for batterers' intervention, in
addition to what we al ready get.

Nunmber 1563

JAMES WELCH, Chief of Police, City of Fairbanks, testified via
tel econference and stated sinply that the Fairbanks Police
Department (FPD) is in support of extending the sunset for the
CDVSA because the council perfornms sone very inportant and
necessary work throughout Alaska and because the council's
support and gui dance are needed throughout the |aw enforcenment
comunity.

Number 1599

BRENDA STANFI LL, Executive Director, Interior Al aska Center for
Non-Violent Living (1AC), testified via teleconference. She
noted that the I AC has a comunity-based batterers' intervention
program as well as a program in the prison. She spoke in
support of extending the sunset for the CDVSA, noting that she
has been with her organization for six years and thus has had an
opportunity to see what the CDVSA has acconplished. She said
that the IAC definitely appreciates the support and oversight
provided by the CDVSA; "they cone in every two years, at |east,
go through our records, make sure we're doing what we say we're
going to be doing, [and], in addition to that, they're great at
provi di ng support when we're having issues."”

Nunber 1673

W N FRED KELLY, Tundra Wnen's Coalition (TW), testified via
t el econference, asking the commttee to extend the sunset on the
CDVSA. She said that the CDVSA funds prograns that are very
i nportant and nuch needed in Al aska. She relayed that although
CDVSA- funded prograns have many success stories, the TWC is
still receiving calls from victinms who need services; in 2001,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 8, 2002



for exanple, 718 crisis calls were taken, and 1,969 shelter
nights were provided. She noted that in the Yukon-Kuskokw m
Delta, the TWC is a strong conmunity resource that provides
necessary education and outreach services, in addition to crisis
i ntervention servi ces. She ext ended her t hanks to
Representative Bunde for sponsoring HB 332, and to the conmttee
for holding the hearing on it.

Nunber 1734

ARLEATA SNELL testified via teleconference, asking the commttee
to extend the sunset on the CDVSA Speaking as a victim of
donestic violence, she noted that it is very inportant for
communities to have safe places for victinse and their famlies
to go to.

Nunmber 1765

BURT COITLE, Mayor, City of Valdez, testified via tel econference
in support of extending the sunset on the CDVSA. He recounted
that he has lived in Valdez for 28 years; has worked in the
police departnment for 22 years, 8 years as chief of police; has
served on the city council for 3 years, 2 years as nayor; and
has spent 2 years on the board of Advocates for Victinms of
Vi ol ence (AW). Speaking as both the mayor and as a private
citizen, he said that he and the citizens of Valdez support the
AW in the follow ng ways: The city of Valdez, in 1998 and
1999, donated $215,000 for the purchase and building of a new
donestic violence shelter; the city has funded $37,000 per year
for the past 15 years-plus; in 2001, two |local fundraisers were
held that raised over $85,000 to "pay off the building here in
town"; and United Way, for the past 10 years-plus, has donated
$30, 000- $40, 000 each year towards donestic violence issues. He
noted that when he travels to Juneau in his capacity as nayor
he stops by the CDVSA and speaks with them directly to ensure
that Valdez is doing everything possible to curb donestic
vi ol ence. In conclusion, he stated that donmestic violence has
not ended, and that sinply throwing people in jail is not
sufficient, since there has been no intervention. He added that
the CDVSA is part of that intervention.

Nunmber 1847
CATHERI NE VAARA, Executive Director, Advocates for Victins of
Violence (AW), testified via teleconference in support of

[extending the sunset on] the CDVSA. She said that the CDVSA
has made a significant difference in nmany people's lives in the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 8, 2002



Val dez area, as well as throughout Al aska: savi ng peopl e,
housing them and helping them to find the resources they need
in order to get on with their |ives. The CDVSA has had a
significant role in ternms of expanding public awareness; "they
are a voice for us," she said, adding that the CDVSA has also
had a significant role in terns of providing technical
assi st ance. She relayed that the CDVSA has supported AW wth
its efforts regarding three successful children's prograns: the
Peacemakers Program specifically addresses bullying issues in
schools; the Strong Grls Program addresses issues of self-
esteem and advocates for devel oping strong peer-group support;
and a "teen talk group” provides a very significant service for
teens in the area. She added that the AW is currently working
with the Valdez Counseling Center in developing a very strong
[batterers'] intervention program She relayed that the CDVSA

has been instrunental in providing a nmarvelous network
t hroughout Al aska, linking up the AW wth 23 other donestic
vi ol ence prograns. She concluded by saying she fully supports

t he conti nuance of the CDVSA.
Nunmber 1919

GRACE BROCKS, Executive D rector, Sitkans  Agai nst Fam |y
Violence (SAFV), testified via teleconference in support of
extending the sunset of the CDVSA She said that it 1is
inperative for Alaska to make a stronger commtnent to ending
vi ol ence agai nst wonen and children, and extending the CDVSA is
a way to denonstrate that conmtnent. She remarked that the
CDVSA is able to leverage federal funds, provides technical
assistance to the many progranms around the state, and, nost
inportantly, provides resources to victinse and survivors in
order that they may build safe lives for thenselves and their
chil dren.

Nunber 1942

DEB KNAFF, Sitkans Against Famly Violence (SAFV), testified via
tel econference, urging the comrittee to extend the sunset on the
CDVSA so that it may continue working with all the prograns
around Al aska. Wth Al aska being such a huge state, the CDVSA
has been integral in providing services that keep wonmen and
children safe. She noted that she also has a letter from Louise
How t zer (ph) that she will fax to the commttee.

Nunmber 1980

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- February 8, 2002



DAWN COYKENDALL testified via teleconference in support of
extending the sunset on the CDVSA She noted that as a victim
of donestic violence, the CDVSA has been invaluable to her. She
recounted that previous to living in Sitka, she lived in Florida
but did not receive services there because she was not aware
that such services even existed. Now, because she lives in
Sitka and because of the CDVSA and the noney it provides, she
explained that she is able to carry on with her life in a
nonvi ol ent environnent; awareness of safe shelters through
comuni ty education has been invaluable to her. She said:

|"ve had need to use the shelter, |I've had need to use
their services, and wthout them I would still be
living in a donestically violent situation. W t hout
them | would have not had |egal help to protect nyself
from ny husband' s viol ence, I woul d  not have
understood what donmestic violence really is, and I
would not have had the services that have been
provided for my husband to make him aware of his own
violent acts. | appreciate this council and the funds
that they have provided, and | am especially grateful
for the safe shelter and the services provided by
t hem

Number 2060

G NGER BAIM Director, Safe and Fear-Free Environnment (SAFE),
testified via teleconference, and noted that SAFE, a donestic
vi ol ence program provides services to the entire Bristol Bay
region - about 33 villages. She said that she is in support of
HB 332 because SAFE depends on the CDVSA to keep the program
goi ng. She conti nued:

As you may have heard, it's been pretty rough out here
in Bristol Bay the |last few years. The failing of our
fishing industry has had a devastating affect on many
of our communities, and one neasure of that problemis
that SAFE provided nearly as many shelter nights in
the first quarter of fiscal year [FY] '02 [as] we

provided in all of fiscal year 'O0Ll. In addition to
the SAFE shelter, we also have a residential care
facility for children, in state custody, that's
operated in the sane building as our donestic violence
pr ogram

W have a Sister's Program which is a treatnent and
shelter program set up specifically for wonen - wth

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 8, 2002



children - who are battered and chem cally dependent.
W have a fetal-alcohol-syndrone prevention program
where we provide <childcare for any parent, but
particularly for young wonen who are attenpting to go
into after-care treatnent or evening treatnent, [and]
we provide childcare and transportation for them Ve
have an active children's program W have an active
village outreach program we have at |east two trained
volunteers in 24 of our 33 villages, and we have four
part-tinme paid advocates in 4 of our villages.

M5. BAI M al so sai d:

Qur board of directors consists of nmany people from
our community, including two village residents [fron]
outside of Dillingham We depend on the council [in
order] to be able to provide these core services; the
council's direction and oversight of our prograns
guarantees the nost efficient and effective use of
state resources. The council also helps to coordinate

the efforts of other state, f ederal , and | oca
agencies to enhance the safety of wvictine and to
reduce donmestic violence. W need them to continue

their good work, and | urge you to pass HB 332 out of
commttee today with your positive support.

Number 2153

JILL SI MPSON, Executive Director, Cordova Fam |y Resource Center
(CFRC), testified via teleconference in support of extending the
sunset for the CDVSA She said that the CDVSA is inportant to
the CFRC because the community is isolated and nust rely on the
CDVSA' s fundi ng and support to transport sone victinms out of the
comunity. She conti nued:

Many of these people, if they didn't know there was a
way out, would not be reporting donestic violence. So
they would continue living with it. But, because
we're able to offer them support and encouragenent and
a place to go outside of their community, we are
getting a lot nore reporting, and [are] able to
support these famlies. The other aspect ... we
consider inportant [is the] work we do in the schools.

W concentrate ... on doing education and prevention;

we're in the grade schools doing a bullying-prevention
program ... trying to cut down on bullying behavior

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 8, 2002



and build self-esteem In the junior high and high
schools, we concentrate nore on discussion groups and
educating students as to relationships and the pattern
of domestic violence. A lot of people don't realize
what can be called donestic violence, and [by]
educating them in relationships as they get into
girl/boy relationships a lot nore, [we are] therefore
coming from a prevention node and not waiting until

it's already happened. ... W rely on the council to
support us in this - in these prograns - and [to
offer] us [the] support to be able to run our office.
So | really encourage you to |look at extending the
council, thank you.

Nunber 2235

NANCY SCHEETZ- FREYM LLER, Public Menber, Council on Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assaul t (CDVSA) , testified Vi a
tel econference in support of extending the sunset on the CDVSA
She opined that the CDVSA is one of the best nodels for
efficient and effective governnent. It's efficient in terns of
the fact that there are four state departnents working together
and with various prograns on the issues of donmestic violence and

sexual assault. It's a nodel that is a |eader in coordination
and famly response. She said that it's effective in the sense
t hat she has seen people from all di fferent political

per suasi ons conme together to try to stop donestic violence;, she
has seen them stop donestic violence by working with victinms, by
working wth nmen, by working with children, and by dealing with
everybody in the conmunity. She noted that she has had wonen
and children conme up to her and say "Thank you, | now have a
positive future,” and she has had nmen cone up to her and say
"Thank you, | didn't want to be like this."

Nunber 2316

BILL MLLER  Deputy Chief, Donestic Violence Coordinator

Anchorage Police Departnent (APD), Muinicipality of Anchorage,
testified via tel econference, noting that as a representative of
the chiefs of police from around Alaska, he is also on the
commttee that admnisters the "Violence Against Wnen Act”
grant noni es. He said that he is in support of HB 332 for two
mai n reasons. The first has to do wth rural |aw enforcenent;
[the CDVSA] helps with the distribution of nonies from the
"followup grant” to rural law enforcenent and smaller police
departnments around the state for training in the areas of
donestic violence and sexual assault. "As many of you know,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 8, 2002



with the smaller departnments and the constricted budget, this
noney and the training that it provides becones extrenely
inmportant to those |aw enforcenent officers and the comrunities
that they serve," he noted. The second reason is that [the
CDVSA] provides a nmechanism for coordination anong |aw
enforcenment, advocates, and other departnents that deal with the
victins and the perpetrators of donestic violence and sexual
assaul t. He opined that [the CDVSA] offers a fine exanple of
the nechanism that provides for coordination anongst governnent
agenci es.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked of the sponsor's representative, Patti
Swenson, if there was a reason the sponsor did not incorporate
the legislative auditor's recommendation to nodify the statute
as it pertained to the hiring of staff.

Number 2397

PATTI SWENSON, Staff to Representative Con Bunde, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, sponsor, on behalf of the sponsor, explained that
Representative Bunde spoke with the executive director of the
CDVSA about that recommendation, and at that tinme, he felt it
woul d not be necessary to incorporate such a change. She added
that the sponsor would not object to such a change if it is the
will of the conmmittee to anend HB 332.

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that there is sonme consensus anong the
conmittee t hat t he auditor's recomendat i on shoul d be
incorporated into HB 332. In order to allow the sponsor the
opportunity to develop a conmmttee substitute (CS), Chair
Rokeber g announced that HB 332 woul d be hel d over.

HIR 15 - CONST. AM PERVANENT FUND

Nunber 2458

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 15, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to inflation-
proofing the pernmanent fund.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cal |l ed an at-ease from1:50 p.m to 1:52 p.m

TAPE 02-13, SIDE B
Nunber 2459

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- February 8, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HIR 15, version 22-LS0568\C, Cook, 1/31/02
as a work draft. There being no objection, Version C was before
the commttee.

CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that Version C nerely changes, from 5
percent to 6 percent, the maximum anount that can be
appropriated from the pernmanent fund. He asked for conments
regardi ng this change

Number 2437

CLARK S. CGRUENI NG Menber, Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation
Board of Trustees ("the board"), noted that other testifiers
woul d speak nore specifically to that change, whereas he
preferred to address the purpose of [HIR 15], which is to
provide "conplete and protected inflation-proofing" for the
permanent fund ("the fund"). He explained that [HIR 15] does
this by limting the annual appropriation to 5 percent of the

"noving average." Sinmply speaking, he said, the "projected
| ong-term average earning return of the fund" is 8 percent,
whereas inflation is 3 percent; so by only spending 5 percent,
the fund retains that 3 percent inflation figure. In an effort

to explain why inflation-proofing is so inportant for the fund,
he nentioned that 25 years ago, when the ninth |egislature
anended the Alaska State Constitution, they knew that although
the state would quickly get used to using oil revenue, oi
production would decline at sonme point. Because of this
inevitable decline, it mde sense to set up a savings account
even though, at the time, it was not known exactly what that
savi ngs account would be used for, nor what kind of financial
situation the state would find itself in.

MR. GRUENING in response to a question, elaborated that sonme of
the things that could not be foreseen were the rate of oil
production and the exact tinefrane when the oil noney would run
out . He said that according to his recollection, the
proj ections of when the noney would run out were a lot earlier
than has proven to be the case, and this has been due in part to
good luck and a lot nore oil production than was initially
antici pated by the oil conpani es.

CHAI R ROKEBERG added that to his recollection, it was projected
that the state would be out of oil in 2003.

MR. GRUENING confirnmed that. "It was very pessimstic," he
added. He said that the one point he wanted to bring to the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- February 8, 2002



conmmittee's attention as it looks forward for the next 25 years
is that if it could be legislated that an industry produce "X
anount of revenue, the |egislature would do so. He recalled a
joke that he has heard from tinme to tine regarding a
hypot heti cal piece of legislation that says, "The price of oil
wll be "X'" He posited that what HIR 15 does is the
equivalent of taking an industry such as fishing, oil, or
tourism for exanple, and saying, "You' re going to produce this
much inconme over this period of tinme." Passage of HIR 15 w ||
ensure that over the next 25 years - |ooking at the oil industry
to produce under $20 billion, and even after the inflation-
proofing noney is retained - the permanent will produce, for the
| egi sl ature's and the people's use, nore than twice $20 billion.
He stated that in the larger context, inflation-proofing makes
"good policy sense.” He indicated that the next testifier would
speak to the issue of why the appropriation limt should remain
5 percent instead of 6 percent as is proposed in Version C.

Number 2240

ROBERT D. STORER, Executive Director, Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation (APFC), indicated that he would speak briefly about
how the APFC and its staff came to the conclusion that 5 percent
is the appropriate nunber to have as an appropriation limt, and
about how the Earnings Reserve Account (ERA) functions as a
shock absorber for market volatility. He noted that next week

the APFC s consultant will nake the yearly presentation before
the board wherein it will review the capital market assunptions
that the consultant prepares. During the review, the board
| ooks at an array of options, and what they nmean to the board is
a nedian expected return over the next five years. "Over the
| ast few years and, in fact, next week, you're going to find our
existing asset allocation ... has a nedian expectation of

producing a 5 percent real rate of return, a return that would
be 5 percent over the rate of inflation," he said. This is nore
than coincidence, he warned, it 1is actually the long-term
historical rate of return of what the asset allocation earns.

CHAl R ROKEBERG asked what that anpunt was. "'t was nore than 5
percent then, right?"

MR. STORER acknow edged that "the history of the pernmanent fund

is in fact nore than 5 percent.” He said that it can be | ooked
at two ways: one way is to look at "five years projecting
forward," but when he refers to long-term he said he 1is

actual ly tal ki ng about data since 1926.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- February 8, 2002



CHAI R ROKEBERG asked: "But you just said |last year we just got
the data, and it was the inflation plus 5 [percent] - which
added up to how nmuch, then?"

MR. STORER asked whether he is referring to returns.

CHAI R ROKEBERG i ndicated he is referring to returns. "I thought
you said you net the 5 percent target based on what inflation
occurs. "

Number 2175

MR. STORER, to clarify that point, said that |ast year, when
there was actually a negative return, the [real rate of] return
of the fund was below inflation. He noted that this information
segues into another point he wanted to make: When | ooki ng at
|l ong-term nunbers and how they are interpreted, there are
periods, sonetinmes prolonged periods, when that real rate of
return can not be achieved, such as happened |ast year. He
pointed out that if nenbers had | ooked at this sanme proposal in
1983, when he first came to work for the APFC, they would have
di sapproved of the neasure because the asset allocation for the
decade previous to 1983 did not achieve a 5 percent real rate of
return. But over the longer term he noted, the APFC has been
able to achieve a return in excess of that 5 percent rate of
return.

CHAI R ROKEBERG remarked that it has been closer to 12 percent.

MR. STORER indicated that that is a fair statenent; "double
digits at least ... over l|ast year." But there are prol onged
periods of tinme, he reiterated, when that goal cannot be
achi eved, though there are also prolonged periods of tine when

the return is in excess of that goal. VWhich is why the ERA is
so inportant, he added. He explained that the permanent fund is
divided into two conponents: the principal, which cannot be

touched without a vote of the people, and the ERA, which is, in
essence, the profits and the inconme of the fund realized through
the normal market process [and] the wunrealized gains through
stock and bond appreciation. The ERA is actually the conponent
that absorbs the market volatility, he noted. Wen the val ue of
the fund goes down because of the market, the principal does not
change but the ERA goes down dramatically. He pointed out that
the ERA is also the conponent that allows the legislature to
appropriate noney for the permanent fund dividend (PFD), for
i nflation-proofing, et cetera.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- February 8, 2002



CHAIR ROKEBERG renmarked that if [HIR 15] is adopted, there
woul dn't be an ERA.

MR. STORER said that technically, there would still be an ERA
there would still be a principal that could be nmeasured by ...

CHAIR ROKEBERG interjected, pointing out that all the funds
woul d be conmi ngled, and that there would be no need for an ERA
"That's the whole idea of an endowrent, | thought,"” he added.

Number 2070

MR. STORER acknow edged that the funds would be comm ngl ed. He
noted, however, that the |anguage pertaining to "principal”
still exists in HIR 15; this wunderscores the inportance of
having an ERA as a cushion. He said that it could be considered
a belt-and-suspenders way of protecting the earnings.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that "that's what we have now." |If HIR 15
wer e adopted, however, then future legislatures would be limted
to the amount constitutionally stipulated via this |egislation
"So we [won't] have an [ERA] that we could dip into,"” he added.

MR. STORER said: "Not all of it, no."
CHAI R ROKEBERG count er ed: "W wouldn't have any." There would
just be the 6 percent or 5 percent or whatever appropriation

limt the legislature stipul ates.

MR. GRUENI NG noted that the part that doesn't change in HIR 15

is the concept of protecting the principal. Once "principal" is
def i ned, the rest is earnings reserve or Wwhatever the
| egislature wants to call it, he added. That aspect of the

statute doesn't get repealed by HIR 15, so that difference
bet ween that notional nunber of principal - which is sinply what
has gone in by constitutional nandate plus what the |egislature,
over the last 25 years, has put in voluntarily, which amounts to
$7 billion - and the market value is what is currently avail able
for appropriation. He remarked that HIJR 15 doesn't change the
concept that once all that is left is just the principal, either
through spending or nmarket volatility, then there 1is no
spendi ng, peri od.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked: "At the 5 percent figure, all things
bei ng equal right now, what would that dollar anmount be?"

MR. STORER offered that it would be about $1.2 billion.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- February 8, 2002



CHAI R ROKEBERG asked what the anpunt woul d be at 6 percent.
MR STORER said that it would be about $1.5 billion.

CHAI R RCKEBERG asked what anmpunt of the "unencunbered earnings
reserve" could be paid out in 2003, for exanple, "if we wanted
to dip into the [ERA], that's over and above the PFD and
inflation?"

Number 1914

MR. STORER said that the projection is that the APFC will earn
about 8 percent on June 30, after the liability of the PFD is
encunbered and after inflation-proofing. This should |eave
about $3 billion in the ERA, the projected amounts of about 8
percent earnings and about 3 percent inflation, he noted.

CHAIR ROKEBERG remarked that he has heard nunbers ranging
bet ween $175 million to $200 million a year as the profit.

MR. STORER clarified that the "residual" is about $175 mllion
to $300 nmillion; "we use a range because of our conponents."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noted that the remark that HIR 15 is not
changing a certain portion of the statute is incorrect; HIR 15
stipulates that all income from the pernmanent fund shall be
deposited into the permanent fund rather than in the general
fund as is currently required. She said:

So you are naking the permanent fund, in total, a
permanent fund. And | assune that this nmeans that the
appropriations shall be limted to 6 percent but it

doesn't say [that] no other appropriations from the
permanent fund may be nmade. But what you're allow ng
us, then, is to appropriate from the pernmanent fund
itself. Isn't that correct?

MR. GRUENI NG pointed out that when he is speaking of the market
value of the fund, he is referring to the principal and the
earnings reserve, so in a sense, right now, because of the
current statutory |anguage that sets up the ERA, the noney does
go into the permanent fund.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said that she disagrees with that statenent
because it is not [put into the] permanent [fund], it is [put

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- February 8, 2002



into the] general [fund]; all of the state's incone is currently
put into the general fund.

CHAIR ROKEBERG indicated that he, too, disagrees with M.
Grueni ng' s statenent.

MR. GRUENI NG acknow edged that HIJR 15 would change it from the
way it is done now. Under current statute, noney is deposited
into the ERA, which sets up the nmechanism But in terns of what
the APFC manages, it's the total amount, including the ERA
"And when you take a percent of market value, it includes the
total market value - principal and earnings reserve," he said.

Number 1792

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES sought confirmation that it is true that
when the permanent fund is managed, when part of it is permanent
and part of it isn't, there could be a difference in the way
that sone of [the noney] is "deposited,” and thus the portion
that is not permanent mght be invested a little differently.

MR. STORER expl ai ned that APFC nmanages the permanent fund with a
single asset allocation; in ternms of managing the assets of the
fund there's no distinction between the principal and the
earni ngs reserve. He noted that if HIR 15 were to pass, that
managenent style would conti nue.

CHAI R ROKEBERG sought confirmation that the APFC does "manage
for payouts,” such as the PFD.

MR. STORER acknow edged that there is a cash-flow i ssue and that
is part of the whole asset-allocation devel opnent.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked whether the 5 percent figure that M.
Storer is advocating for would then be the only anount avail able
for liquidation in order to have cash avail abl e.

MR. STORER sai d:

We woul d basically manage the fund as we do now, which
has, to date, the dividend, [and] you can expect to
aver age about 4 per cent, and SO t hat cash
requirenent's nomnally nore in ternms of nanaging a
$25 billion fund. And so that certainty, if you wll,
would allow us to maintain the stock exposure that we
have. If the payout were to increase dramatically,

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- February 8, 2002



then we mght consider managing the fund nore
conservatively to neet the cash-fl ow needs.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said that she does not know whether she is
nore confortable wth a 6 percent or wth a 5 percent
limtation. She added, however, that she is not confortable
with the fact that "if we do this and we don't change the way we
calcul ate the permanent fund dividend, that's all that ever gets
paid - or nostly all that ever gets paid.”" She said that she is
not willing "to go there until we've nade sonme changes in how we
al l ocate the permanent fund dividend over the long period ...;
in fact, I'mnot sure the current calculation we have even works
with this situation because of the way the statutory | anguage
Is.”

Number 1639

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that they would have to |eave the existing
statutory language in until the voters get a chance to vote on a
constitutional amendnent. He said that he would not be averse
to changing the current "statutory reginme" because he thinks
it's broken.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES renarked that she has a pl an.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked how nuch was paid out in PFDs | ast year.

MR STORER said $1.182 [billion].

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked how much the inflation-proofing was.

MR. STORER said roughly $700 m | 1lion.

CHAIR ROKEBERG surmsed, then, that the 5 percent figure
woul dn't have been sufficient for last year's inflation-proofing
and PFDs.

MR. STORER said that is correct.

CHAI R ROKEBERG sai d that depending on the level of inflation, if

the 5 percent figure is adopted, there is still the risk that
the dividend would have to be reduced and that there would be
nothing available for the legislature to appropriate. He said

that was his rational for raising the appropriation limt to 6
percent. He asked whether the $7 billion that the |egislature
has voluntarily placed into the principal is "nomnal dollars or
grow h dollars.”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- February 8, 2002



MR. GRUENI NG said it is actual doll ars.

CHAI R ROKEBERG surm sed, then, that "the growth is nore than
hal f." For those that are concerned that the pernmanent fund has
not been inflation-proofed enough, he said that he woul d suggest
instead that the legislature has "inflation-proofed the kitchen
sink; we have inflation-proofed every dine and dollar in every

nook and cranny of the permanent fund - we've over-inflation-
proofed it." The legislature has added fully half of the
permanents fund's whole value, he noted, "by nomnal direct
dol l ar deposits" and the appreciation of those dollars. He
sai d:

If we look at the integers of what can really be the
proper endownent anount, in ny ... opinion we could
probably go 50 years at 6 percent and wouldn't eat up
what we've already got inflation-proofed in there now.
I"d love to see sone nunbers on that in a nodel. I
think we've already inflation-proofed it so far ahead

that ... to say that we [should] just stick here at
the old conservative 5 percent rate - and |eaving us
nothing on table for maneuver-room - is ridiculous,

because we've already [done] our job over and over
again, as the legislature, and being responsible to
the public. ... I"'ma firm believer, gentlenen, in
your endownent plan and your recommendation, but to
tie the legislature's hands in this nmanner, when we
al ready have done the good job of protecting it, is, |
think, a false econony and not good, given the
financial circunstances we're going into. In other
words, | can't believe that we could sell this to the
public, and even our own colleagues here, if we have
such a mniscule amount. That's mny opinion.

Number 1484

JIM KELLY, Director of Conmmunications, Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation (APFC), to clarify, said:

Any discussion about how nuch noney needs to be
inflation-proofed isn't included in the $1.2 billion
W will nmake $2 billion in this comng year, and the
noney that would be available would be made avail abl e
for dividends and any other public use that you'd
have, and that would be out of the $1.2 billion. In
this fiscal year that's comng up, the dividend is

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- February 8, 2002



going to be right around [$1] billion, so there would,
in fact, be <close to $250 mllion available for
anot her use.

MR. KELLY said that the nore inportant point has to do with the
| ong-term and although part of it is about inflation-proofing,

the other part of it, as M. Guening points out, is about
produci ng a sustainable inconme stream "And if your intent, M.
Chairman, is to produce as nmuch noney as possible from the
permanent fund, over the next 25 years you will get nore noney
at a 5 percent limt than you will with a 6 percent |limt," he
st at ed.

CHAI R ROKEBERG mentioned that he "would also be interested in
seeing that, because you're talking about building the critica
mass, so 5 percent of 200 is bigger than 5 percent of 100."

MR. KELLY acknow edged that it is a "math thing and it has to do
wi th conpounding.”™ But over tine, when nore noney is paid out,
there is less noney to invest in the future, and so less is
produced, he noted. He continued:

| can tell you that over a 25-year period - and wth

the permanent fund we try to think of it in terns of

generations, which is 35 years, 65 years, 100 years
- you're going to get nore noney.

CHAI R ROKEBERG poi nted out a picture |ocated on the back wall of
the commttee room He said that it is "from about 1886 and
it's of Liberty being strangled to death by taxes; that's where
we're at today, we're about ready to be strangled to death by
taxes." He said he didn't know if there is time to build a
critical mass, and fiddle while Rone burns, wthout using sone
permanent fund earnings of one nature or another. He noted that
al though he doesn't disagree with M. Kelly's point, it is a
matter of how nmuch patience "we" have.

Number 1356

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH asked the representatives from the APFC
and the board whether "the 5 percent is supportable by you all."”
He said that although he understands Chair Rokeberg's position
regarding 6 percent, he doesn't automatically support that
figure and would |li ke to hear the representatives' viewoint.

MR, GRUENI NG sai d: "It's on the aggressive side, [though] we
believe it's supportable.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- February 8, 2002



MR. STORER sai d:

We concluded that given our existing statutes that
limt the anmount of nobney we can invest in the equity

market, ... a 5 percent was on the high end of
achievable; it's aggressive but we believe we can
achieve that goal and still ensure that the pernanent
fund is inflation-proofed well into the future.

Recogni zi ng, because of mar ket vol atility, t hat
certain years you would not make (indisc.--coughing),
and certain years you would nake considerably nore
than that sum

CHAI R ROKEBERG surm sed, then, that the APFC would be able to
"guarantee the basic valuation of the fund's ability to produce
a real dollar, not nomnal dollar, in the future; so your future
i ncone stream woul d be consistent.

MR STORER said that is correct.

CHAI R ROKEBERG added that that does not take into account any
mar ket volatility or economc volatility the state nmay face;

"therefore, it's |like the permanent fund will be this solid,
growing rock ... of financial stability, as the state goes
bankrupt - potentially."” He said that that is how he is

interpreting the testifiers' conments.

MR. KELLY advised nenbers not to forget that [the pernmanent

fund] is going to be producing $2 billion a year of inconme - or
$1.250 billion - which is going to be in excess of any other
source of inconme in the state. "It'"s twice as large as your

next | argest source of incone,” he added.

CHAI R ROKEBERG sai d he agrees, adding that he wants to nmake sure
it renmains a bountiful source of incone.

Number 1228
REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, referring to the nmenorandum from the APFC
in menbers' packets, asked how increasing the appropriation

limt in HIR 15 to 6 percent would inpact the anmount avail able
to help fill the fiscal gap.

MR. STORER, after noting that the dividend formula would remain
the sane, said that there could be between $375 mllion and $550

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- February 8, 2002



mllion available for appropriation. He rem nded nenbers,
however, that wultimately, if nore is taken "off the table,"”
there would be sone dimnishment of the dividend over tine,
t hough that inpact would be relatively small.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES renmarked that the legislature is attenpting

to fill a $900 mllion hole this year, and to fill even half of
that with taxes is going to have a huge inpact on Al aska's
econony, "to suck that out of the people' s pockets." She al so
remarked that Alaska is going to have to "grow our econony,"”
which is going to take noney. "You don't get anywhere wi thout
investing in sonething; we need to probably spend sonme nore
noney, ... and so, quite frankly, | don't want to have ny hands

tied right now, " she added. She said that although she |ikes
the concept of HIR 15, she has concerns about going that route
at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL st at ed: It's available now. He also
mentioned that it wasn't going to be easy to go to the people
and convince them to vote to allow the legislature to
appropriate fromthe permanent fund.

CHAI R RCKEBERG remarked that HIR 15 would protect the permnent
fund nuch better than it is being protected now, since the
current "statutory regine is broken." If there is an extended
period of "negative markets,” and if there are not adequate
anounts in the ERA, it may result in not being able to pay a
di vi dend, he predicted.

Nunber 1041

MR, KELLY said that there is no doubt that HIJR 15 adds a | evel
of protection to the permanent fund. Even using the 6 percent
figure, it is still alimt on how nuch can be appropriated from
the fund, he noted, and is a tighter limt than what exists
right now, which is none. Right now, the |legislature can
appropriate all $3 billion that's in the permanent fund' s ERA,

and that would be that; HIR 15 at least limts that ability. He
noted that the APFC has spoken to people in different
communities throughout the state and there has been a great deal
of support for the notion of a constitutional anendnment that
would limt the annual payout of the permanent fund earnings and
that would ensure that that noney is "at as high a level as
possible for as long as possible”; that's sonmething that
resonates with the people.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- February 8, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked whether, during those conversations,
the APFC told people that "all of this was going to go to
per manent fund dividends - or nost of it."

MR. KELLY replied that there is a long-standing tradition at the
APFC that the trustees do not opine on issues of what should be
done with that noney, and "we've just never crossed that line."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how the payout and the fund's
val uation would be affected should there be another recession
such as the one that occurred in the early '70s when "we did get
into double-digit inflation."

MR. STORER posited that it could Iimt the anmount that could be
paid out. He said that there are two questions: |If we get into
double-digit inflation, then what happens to the financial
mar kets, and how long would they both perform "in the manner
that they did." He remarked that "we" didn't even experience
double-digit inflation in the '70s; it was actually rather
short-lived, and nore like 6 to 8 percent. A prolonged doubl e-
digit inflation conbined with a bear-equity market, which would
have sonme inpact on the bond nmarket as well, would create the
bi ggest problem he noted. The problem of |ower earnings
conbined with higher inflation could exist, he added, regardless
of whether [HIR 15] passes; however, [HIR 15] would allow a
consistent |level of appropriation so that the needs of the state
could be nmet in such an environnent.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said that his point is that the
| egislature would still be limted to 5 percent of whatever the
value of the fund is, and people mght view it differently in
that kind of situation.

Nunber 0740

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER relayed that a constituent of his had
mentioned that back when the permanent fund was started, no one
had ever dreanmed that it would one day be worth $25 billion, and
had proposed that sone of that noney could be used to close the
fiscal gap. Representative Meyer surmised that in his
constituent's opinion, $25 billion was enough; he posited that
it mght be tine to question how big the permanent fund should
get. Are "we" going to be here 20 years from now with a fund
that's worth $75 billion, he asked.

CHAI R ROKEBERG offered that it is a question of whom the fund
shoul d benefit: "you, or your grandchildren?”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -31- February 8, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that the question for himis, "At what
point is enough, enough: when has it grown enough, and when
should we start using it for something?"

MR. GRUENI NG remarked that Representative Meyer has brought up a
point regarding the way inflation-proofing is done now it
actually is taken from the earnings reserve and placed into the
principal, where it can't be spent. Under [HIR 15], that noney
woul d actually be retained and becone part of that total market
value, which is another way of saying it inflation-proofs the
whol e fund.

MR. KELLY noted that he'd received a call from a reporter who

asked, "What if you stopped inflation-proofing; ... what would
be the inpact in 25 years?" M. Kelly explained that although
the fund will still be $25 billion, the value of the dollars
paid out - in dividends or anything else - would shrink at the
rate of inflation. So in 25 years, that $25 billion would be
the equivalent of $6 billion in today's dollars, which would not
be good for either "you, or your grandchildren,” if inflation-

proofing is discontinued.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER indicated that he is hopeful that "soneday
we wll have [Arctic National WIldlife Refuge] (ANWR) open,
we'll have another 'Prudhoe Bay,' we'll have a gas pipeline,”
and then as nore noney becones available, it can again be used
to inflation-proof the permanent fund. He posited that adoption
of [HIR 15] would definitely tie the |egislature' s hands.

Nunmber 0565

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked whether HIJR 15 would change the way
PFDs are distributed and whether any statutes related to that
di stribution would need to be changed.

MR. KELLY indicated that HIR 15 would not change the way PFDs
are distributed and no statutory changes woul d be needed.

CHAIR ROKEBERG said he disagrees; "we would have to nake
statutory changes to reflect [changes created by] t he
constitutional amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked what would be the payout of the PFD
under HIR 15, if the statutes don't change.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -32- February 8, 2002



MR. KELLY said that the [PFD] projection for the follow ng year
is alittle bit under $1 billion - under the existing statutes -
and that is also what it would be under HIR 15. The [ PFD|
statute woul dn't change and woul dn't need to change; the anount
that would be needed to pay the PFD falls well within the 5
percent limt proposed by HIR 15.

CHAl R ROKEBERG asked whether the PFD would be around $1,300 to
$1, 400.

MR, KELLY said that it is not yet that |ow although it noves
down towards $1,400 over several years.

Number 0441

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said that according to her understanding,
"even though this fund is a total fund, you still know what the
earnings are, and the [PFD] is calculated on the average of the
| ast five years of earnings.” So she is assumng, she said,
that even if "you had all the permanent fund in as a pernanent
fund, you could still identify what those earnings were over the
| ast five years and average it." She suggested, however, that
"it goes on to say ..., 'or half of the earnings reserve', which
is ever smaller, and now we don't have an earnings reserve
anynore [under HIR 15]; it's all permanent [fund], wth an
allocation for us to appropriate.” That's not the sane thing,
she argued, adding that if it is the 5 percent, the amunt "in
that pot" is reduced to half - instead of alnost all, as
i ndi cated the APFC representatives. "So it either can't be done
at all, or it greatly changes the way we do it, in one fell
swoop, " she said.

CHAIR ROKEBERG said that that is why he believes a statutory
change is needed, "because, nunber one, there's statutory
requi renents for inflation-proofing, which would be obviated by
the adoption of [HIR 15]; so because inflation-proofing is

internalized and automatic, ... those provisions for inflation-
proofing need to be repealed.” He noted that "the rest of the
mechani cs of the fund would have to be adjusted also, to reflect
the reality of the payout, because right now it says, 'the

general fund', and that creates the earnings reserve," whereas
[HIR 15] would change it to say, "permanent fund", which to him
means that "the earnings reserve goes away."

VR, GRUENI NG pointed out that actually, the legislature

appropriates funds in each year's budget for inflation-proofing.
He added that there was an attorney general's opinion - "back in

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 33- February 8, 2002



the 'Dave Rose days'" - that indicated that such inflation-
proofing is automatic, but the legislature was of a contrary
opi ni on.

Nunmber 0263

RONALD W LORENSEN, Attorney; Sinpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen &
Longenbaugh; noted that he has been counsel to the APFC for over
five years. He said that his interpretation of [HIR 15] is that
it would not change the present distinction between what 1is
principal and what is income - earnings reserve. He said that
the reason for this interpretation can be found in Section 1 of
HIR 15, which says that the principal into which all funds are
deposited shall only be used for certain purposes. It is the
follow ng sentence in Section 1 that stipulates what happens to
income, he explained, adding that although HIR 15 says that
income shall be deposited into the permanent fund, it does not
automatically becone principal; incone is still inconme, so for
accounti ng purposes, the principal continues to be accounted for
as principal, and the inconme is accounted for as incone by
accruing it in what has been designated by the l|egislature as

the ERA He advised the commttee not to assune that just
changi ng where the incone goes - from general fund to permnent
fund - by itself, turns inconme into principal, which is
i nvi ol at e.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked whether what is currently done with
unreal i zed gai ns woul d change under HIR 15.

MR. LORENSEN said that the sinple answer is that wunrealized
gai ns, under accepted accounting principles, are required to be
accounted for as incone; under HIJR 15, they would continue to be
treated in the sane manner for purposes of the five-year market
val ue, which is as incone and not as principal. He pointed out
that for purposes of calculating the PFD, only realized incone
is considered, not unrealized incone.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL remarked that he is referring to the
val ue upon which the 5 percent limtation is based, so he is
wondering at what point do [unrealized gains] discount that
val ue.

MR. LORENSEN said that wunder the 5-percent-of-market-val ue
approach, the nmarket value would be based on generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), which say that unrealized gains
are included as incone; hence they would be part of the total
val ue.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 34- February 8, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked whether this neans that at any given
time, the APFC could calculate how much is in the ERA and if
so, whether [that calculation] would include the wunrealized
gai ns.

MR. LORENSEN sai d yes.

TAPE 02-14, SIDE A

Number 0001
CHAIR ROKEBERG closed the public hearing on HIR 15. He
indicated that he would like to see either Version C or the

original version of HIR 15 nove from commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES indicated that she is not willing to nove
either version at this point in tine.

CHAlI R ROKEBERG announced that HIR 15 woul d be hel d over.

HB 243 - VERI FY AGE REQD FOR DEFENSE I N SEX CRI MES

Nunber 0140

CHAl R ROKEBERG announced that the |ast order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 243, "An Act relating to sexual assault or
abuse of a mnor."

Nunber 0242

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 243, version 22-LS0770\C, Luckhaupt,
2/1/02, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version C
was before the commttee.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendment 1:

Page 1, line 7:
Delete "and in good faith"

CHAIR ROKEBERG explained that the |anguage he recommends
deleting is |anguage that is used in business, and isn't used in
the crimnal code.

REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,

obj ect ed. He explained that the aforenentioned |anguage was
part of what the subcommittee devel oped. He told the committee

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 35- February 8, 2002



that Representative Berkowtz felt that the |anguage was a good
i dea.

CHAI R ROKEBERG informed the conmttee that he has a note from
[his staff] that Representative Berkowitz changed his mnd in
regards to the need for the |anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER renmarked that if Representative Berkowtz
didn't feel strongly about the |[|anguage, then perhaps the
sponsor wouldn't either.

Nunmber 0483

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, Legal Services
Section-Juneau, Crimnal D vision, Departnment of Law (DQL),
remarked that her first reaction to the anendnent is that "and
in good faith" is used in civil law, and is probably subsuned
Wi thin "reasonably", anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if Chair Rokeberg neant to say that
after the subcommttee neeting, Representative Berkow tz changed
his mnd and agreed that "and in good faith" shouldn't be
i ncl uded.

HEATHER M NOBREGA, Staff to Representative Norman Rokeberg,
House Judiciary Standing Committee, Alaska State Legislature,
noted that after the subcommttee neeting, which she attended

she spoke wth Representative Berkowitz who, upon further
reflection, felt that use of the aforenentioned |anguage was a
bad i dea. She agreed that the rationale was that the |anguage
is used in civil law, and would be redundant [when used wth
"reasonabl y"].

REPRESENTATIVE DYSON renoved his objection to Conceptual
Amendnent 1.

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced, for the record, that Representative
Berkowitz's staff wasn't present during the aforenentioned
conversation and thus couldn't coment.

CHAIR ROKEBERG asked whether there was any objection to
Conceptual Anendnent 1. There being no objection, Conceptual
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0697

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 36- February 8, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noved to report the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 243, version 22-LS0770\C, Luckhaupt,
2/ 1/ 02, as anended, out of committee wth i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal note. There being
no objection, CSHB 243(JUD) was reported from the House
Judi ci ary Standing Conm ttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

Nunmber 0738

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 2:49 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -37- February 8, 2002



